

MINUTES

of the **Bayside Traffic Committee** held in the Rockdale Town Hall, Pindari Room Level 1, 448 Princes Highway, Rockdale on **Wednesday 9 July 2025** at **9:15AM**

Present

Councillor Liz Barlow (Convenor) Les Crompton, representing State Member for Kogarah Andy Gaudiosi, representing TfNSW

Also present

Louise Farrell, Manager City Infrastructure, Bayside Council Sam Lindsay, Coordinator Traffic & Road Safety, Bayside Council Jason Huang, Senior Traffic Engineer, Bayside Council Raj Shah, Traffic Engineer, Bayside Council Romel Ayoub, Traffic Engineer, Bayside Council Syed Hassan, Traffic Engineer, Bayside Council Utsav Dhakal, Student/Graduate Engineer, Bayside Council Robert Kozarovski, Coordinator Program Certification, Compliance and Community Safety, Bayside Council Paul Adams, Coordinator Parking & Safety, Bayside Council Shobna Maharaj, Traffic Committee Administrative Officer, Bayside Council

1 Acknowledgment of Country

The Chairperson opened the meeting in the Rockdale Town Hall Pindari Room, Level 1, 448 Princess Highway, Rockdale at 9.15am and affirmed that Bayside Council acknowledges the Bidjigal Clan, the traditional owners of the land on which we meet and work and acknowledges the Gadigal people of the Eora Nation. Bayside Council pays respects to Elders past and present.

2 Apologies

The following apologies were received:

Councillor Soraya Kassim Samantha Ortado, representing State Members for Rockdale and Heffron Traffic Sergeant Adam Neale, St George Police Area Command Jeff Gould, Traffic Sergeant, South Sydney Police Area Command Phoebe Mikhiel, Manager Compliance & Community Safety, Bayside Council

3 Disclosures of Interest

There were no disclosures of interest.

4 Minutes of Previous Meetings

4.1 Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee Meeting - 11 June 2025

Committee Recommendation

That the Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee meeting held on 11 June 2025 be confirmed as a true record of proceedings.

4.2 Business Arising

The Committee notes that the Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee of Wednesday 11 June 2025 were received and the recommendations therein were adopted by the Council at its meeting of 25 June 2025.

5 Reports

BTC25.118 Abercorn Street, Bexley - Proposed temporary 5 minute parking zone

Committee Recommendation

- 1 That approval be given to the installation of a 'P5 minute 9:00 am 10:00 am 2:00 pm 3:00 pm' zone on the northern side of Abercorn Street, Bexley outside Bexley Gospel Hall, for the period of 14 July 2025 to 17July 2025 inclusive, as per attached drawings.
- 2 That the existing parking restrictions be reinstated following the completion of the program.

BTC25.119 Bonar St Arncliffe - Proposed Kerb Separation

Committee Recommendation

That no further action be undertaken by Council with regards to the existing stormwater grates on Bonar Street, Arncliffe.

BTC25.120 Daphne Street, Botany - Resident Parking Scheme

Committee Recommendation

That a '3P, 8.00am – 6.00pm, Mon-Fri, 8.00am – 12.00pm, Sat, Permit Holders Excepted, Area B1' zone be installed adjacent to 30-34 Daphne Street, Botany and that the adjoining properties fronting the new signage be included in the existing B1 parking permit scheme area.

BTC25.121 Ewan Street, Mascot - Proposed No Stopping Restrictions

Committee Recommendation

That approval be granted for the installation of 'No Stopping' and C3 Yellow Linemarking restrictions along Ewan Street, as per the attached plan.

BTC25.122 24 Grantham Street, Carlton - Proposed 12m Works Zone for 32 Weeks

Committee Recommendation

- 1 That approval be given to the installation of a 12m 'Works Zone 7:00 am 5:00 pm, Monday Friday and 8:00 am 1:00 pm Saturday' restriction along the northern kerb line of Grantham Street, Carlton, for the duration of 32 weeks, subject to relevant conditions.
- 2 That the applicant ensures that construction vehicles do not queue within Grantham Street; especially concrete trucks during the construction period waiting to deliver to the site.
- 3 That the existing parking restrictions in Grantham Street not be changed in view of this proposal and the two-way traffic flow be maintained in Grantham Street at all times unless separate road occupancy approvals have been obtained through Council's Public Domain and Referrals team.
- 4 That approval not be given to the movement of 12m 'Heavy Rigid Vehicles' due to constraints in the existing road infrastructure and be limited to '8.5m' heavy vehicle only.
- 5 That approval is not given to construction vehicles to arrive or depart from the site during school zone hours i.e. 8:00 am 9:30 am and 2:30 pm 4:00 pm school days.
- 6 That the applicant notifies Council, six (6) Weeks in advance of required extension to the 32 week 'Works Zone'.
- 7 That the applicant notifies the adjacent properties of the approved Works Zone and provides a copy to Council for record.

BTC25.123 Hastings Street, Botany - Proposed 'Do Not Queue Across Intersection' signs

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given to the installation of "Do Not Queue Across Intersection" signs on Hastings Street at its intersection with Rochester Street and Dover Road, Botany as per the attached drawing.

BTC25.124 Hercules Road, Brighton Le Sands - Proposed changes to 'No Parking' zone

Committee Recommendation

That the existing 'No Parking' restriction on the western side of Hercules Road, north of Teralba Road, be removed to facilitate the introduction of on-street parking, in accordance with the attached plan.

BTC25.125 Hills Street, Banksmeadow - Proposed relocation of 'No Stopping' zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval to be given to relocate the existing 'No Stopping' zone by 4.5m on the western side of Hills Street, Banksmeadow as per attached drawing.

BTC25.126 Intersection of Barton Street and Jones Avenue, Monterey -Proposed 'No Stopping' Zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the installation of a statutory 10m 'No Stopping' zone in the form of yellow C3 linemarking at the Intersection of Barton Street and Jones Avenue, Monterey as per the attached plan.

BTC25.127 Intersection of Bowood Avenue & Highworth Avenue, Bexley - Proposed 'No Stopping' zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the installation of 10m 'No Stopping' zone in the form of C3 yellow line marking at the intersection of Bowood Avenue and Highworth Avenue, Bexley, as per the attached plan.

BTC25.128 Intersection of England Street and Kurnell Street, Brighton-Le-Sands - Proposed 'No Stopping' Zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the installation of a statutory 10m 'No Stopping' zone in the form of yellow C3 linemarking at the intersection of England Street and Kurnell Street, Brighton-Le-Sands as per the attached plan.

BTC25.129 Intersection of Pitt Street and Gibbes Street, Rockdale -Proposed 'No Stopping' zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the installation of a statutory 10m 'No Stopping' zone in the form of yellow C3 line marking on both sides at the intersection of Pitt Street and Gibbes Street, Rockdale as per the attached plan.

BTC25.130 King Street & King Lane, Rockdale - Permanent Road Closure & One-Way Traffic Arrangement

Committee Recommendation

- 1 That the permanent closure of King Street, Rockdale, between Princes Highway and King Lane, be approved.
- 2 That the permanent conversion of traffic flow along King Lane, Rockdale, between King Street and Pitt Lane, be approved.

BTC25.131 Martin Ave & Wollongong Rd - Intersection C3 Linemarking

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the installation of a statutory 10m 'No Stopping' zone in the form of yellow C3 linemarking at the Intersection of Martin Ave & Wollongong Rd, Arncliffe as per the attached plan.

BTC25.132 Milsop Street, Bexley - BB Linemarking

Committee Recommendation

That a 30m BB centreline linemarking be installed on Milsop Street, Bexley, as per the attached plan.

BTC25.133 Narramore Street, Kingsgrove - Proposed relocation of 'No Stopping' zone

Committee Recommendation

That approval to be given to relocate the existing 'No Stopping, 8.00AM – 9.30AM, 2.30PM – 4.00PM, School Days' zone by 2.5m west on the southern side of Narramore Street, Kingsgrove as per attached drawing.

BTC25.134 MS Ride from Sydney to Wollongong - Sunday 2 November 2025 - Proposed Traffic Guidance Scheme

Committee Recommendation

- 1 That approval be granted for the Multiple Sclerosis Society of NSW Outdoor to conduct their annual bicycle ride from Sydney to Wollongong through Arncliffe, Rockdale, Kyeemagh, Brighton Le Sands, Monterey, Ramsgate Beach, Dolls Point and Sans Souci on Sunday 2 November 2025 commencing from 6:00 am.
- 2 That the applicant seek approval from TfNSW for the establishment of temporary 'Clearway, 4:00 am – 11:00 am' restrictions as required on Sunday 2 November 2025:
 - a) Along West Botany Street between Princes Highway and Bestic Street.
 - b) Along Bestic Street between West Botany Street and General Holmes Drive.
 - c) Along The Grand Parade between Bestic Street and Sellwood Street; and
 - d) To remove and reinstate the removable bollards in The Grand Parade (The Little Grand Parade) at General Holmes Drive.
- 3 That concurrence be given to event organisers/police/TfNSW to install temporary restrictions at the following locations:
 - a) 'No Left Turn' from Princes Highway into West Botany Street in the southbound direction.
 - b) 'No Left Turn' from Flora Street into West Botany Street in the southbound direction.
 - c) 'No Right Turn' from West Botany Street into Bestic Street in the eastbound direction.
 - d) 'No Entry' on the eastern arm of the signalised intersection of West Botany Street and Bestic Street in the eastbound direction between 6:00 am and 8:00 am due to sun glare.
 - e) 'No Entry' along Bestic Street from Jacobson Avenue to General Holmes Drive in the eastbound direction.

- f) 'No Entry' into Cook Park car park opposite Culver Street between 4:00 am and 9:30 am.
- g) 'No Entry, Buses Excepted' into Malua Street from The Grand Parade in the southbound direction for State Transit Authority and Veolia Transport's buses to travel northbound from Malua Street to The Grand Parade as there is no alternative route for the buses.
- 4 That the organisers of the event advise affected local residents of Bestic Street and The Grand Parade where the proposed 'Clearway' and the proposed road closure restrictions will be imposed.
- 5 That access for residents of Valda Avenue be maintained during the event.
- 6 That the organisers of the event comply with all the requirements of public authorities for the event.
- 7 That the event organisers liaise with Council's City Presentation Directorate to temporarily remove the bollards at The Little Grand Parade with General Holmes Drive to allow cyclists to pass through and reinstate them in a timely manner.
- 8 That Council authorise bike riders and Multiple Sclerosis Society to use Cook Park at the corner of The Grand Parade and Carruthers Drive, Ramsgate Beach as a minor water, bike repair and first aid stop and assist them in removing the bollards in The Little Grand Parade with General Holmes Drive for the event on Sunday 2 November 2025.

BTC25.135 Oswell Street, Rockdale – Proposed formalisation of 'Bus Zone'

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given to install a 30m 'Bus Zone' on the southern side of Oswell Street, Rockdale, as per the attached plan.

BTC25.136 Proposed Carshare Parking Spaces - Various Locations

Committee Recommendation

1 That 'No Parking, Authorised Car Share Vehicles Excepted' zones be established in various locations around the Bayside LGA as per the attached plans with the exception of Bay Street, Botany; Bonar Street, Arncliffe; Firth Street, Arncliffe and Edgehill Avenue, Botany.

BTC25.137 9 Rhodes Street, Hillsdale - Proposed 10m Works Zone for 52 Weeks

Committee Recommendation

- 1 That approval be given to the installation of a 10m 'Works Zone, 7:00 am 5:00 pm, Mon Fri and 8:00 am 1:00 pm, Sat' restriction, at 9 Rhodes Street, Hillsdale on the western kerbline for a duration of 52 weeks, subject to relevant conditions.
- 2 That approval be given to the movement of heavy vehicles be limited to 8.8m 'Medium Rigid Vehicle' due to constraint in the existing road infrastructure.
- 3 That other existing parking restrictions on the Rhodes Street not be changed due to this proposal and two-way traffic flow be maintained in Rhodes Street at all times unless separate road occupancy approvals have been obtained through Council's Public Domain and Referrals team.
- 4 That applicant must ensure that the construction vehicles do not queue within Rhodes Street and any other local roads in the vicinity especially concrete trucks during the construction period waiting to deliver goods to the site.
- 5 That the applicant notifies Council, six (6) weeks in advance of required extension to the 52 week 'Works Zone'.
- 6 That approval is not given for construction vehicles to use Flint Street as part of ingress and egress routes.
- 7 That the applicant notifies the adjacent properties of the approved 'Works Zone' and provides a copy to Council for record.

BTC25.138 The Grand Parade, Brighton Le Sands - Proposed Accessible Parking Space

Committee Recommendation

That the matter be deferred for further investigation.

BTC25.139 Vanston Parade, Sandringham - Modification of Accessible Parking Space

Committee Recommendation

That approval be given for the modification of two existing 90^o accessible parking spaces on Vanston Parade, Sandringham in association with pavement markings, as per the attached drawings.

BTC25.140 General Business

The following matters were raised by the Chair:

- 1. Barton Park Carpark speed limit. Request to install 10kmh signage. Council Officers to investigate and action.
- 2. Mutch Avenue, Kyeemagh Request to investigate 40kmh sign on the telegraph pole. Council Officers to investigate.
- 3. Fire hydrant at 23-26 Station Street, Kogarah Request to review existing 'Bus Zone' at this location to determine if it can be placed in conjunction with the recently installed 'No Parking' signage. Council Offices to investigate and advise.

The following matter was raised by Representative for State Member for Kogarah:

Council Car Park – Cnr Stoney Creek Road & Forest Road, Bexley – Unregistered vehicles continue to park in and around the car park. Council's Enforcement Team to investigate and take appropriate action.

Committee Recommendation

That the matters raised in General Business be received, noted and action taken as necessary.

The Chairperson closed the meeting at 10.05 am.